

EXAMINEE HANDBOOK







PAPER-DELIVERED TESTING

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Table of Contents

About the <i>TOEIC</i> ® Listening and Reading Test	1
The TOEIC Listening and Reading Test Format	
Frequently Asked Questions	2
Who takes the <i>TOEIC</i> [®] Listening and Reading test?	
Why take the TOEIC Listening and Reading test?	2
Who uses the TOEIC Listening and Reading test?	
When and where can I take the TOEIC Listening and Reading test?	2
How often can I take the <i>TOEIC</i> [®] Listening and Reading test?	
How much does the TOEIC Listening and Reading test cost?	3
What score do I need to "pass" the TOEIC Listening and Reading test?	3
From what kind of contexts are the TOEIC Listening and Reading test questions drawn?	3
If I have a disability, can I still take the TOEIC® Listening and Reading test?	4
Why does the <i>TOEIC</i> [®] program require TOEIC Listening and Reading paper-delivered test takers to use only pencils and no other writing instruments?	
How is the TOEIC Listening and Reading test scored?	5
Why are the TOEIC Listening and Reading test raw scores (i.e., number-correct scores) not reported to test takers?	5
Why are the <i>TOEIC</i> [®] Listening and Reading test raw-score-to-scaled-score conversion tables not disclosed to the public?	5
Why are TOEIC Listening and Reading test items and answer keys not disclosed to the public?	5
Preparing to Take the <i>TOEIC</i> ® Listening and Reading Test	6
How to Get Ready to Take the <i>TOEIC</i> ® Listening and Reading Test	
Test Day Procedures	6
During the Test	6
Identification Requirements	7
Part 1: Information for All Test Takers	7
Acceptable Primary Identification Documents	
Acceptable Secondary Identification Documents	
Unacceptable Identification Documents	
Part 2: If Testing WITHIN Your Country of Citizenship	
Part 3: If Testing OUTSIDE Your Country of Citizenship	9
Testing in European Union/Schengen Zone/Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) Arab Countries or Mercosur Countries	9
Test Center Procedures and Regulations	9
Report Suspicious Behavior	10
Dismissal from Test Session	11

Sample Questions for the TOEIC® Listening and Reading Test	12
General Directions	12
Section I: Listening	12
Section II: Reading	16
TOEIC [®] Background Questionnaire and Answer Sheet	21
Background Questionnaire	21
Answer Sheet	21
Accent Marks	21
Group Code	21
Custom Codes	21
Sample Background Questionnaire	22
Sample Answer Sheet	24
Score Reporting	26
TOEIC® Certificate of Achievement	26
TOEIC® Listening and Reading Official Score Certificate	26
TOEIC® Listening and Reading Official Score Report	27
Score Holds and Cancellations	27
TOEIC® Listening and Reading Test Scores	28
Test Fairness and Score Use	28
Interpreting Scores	28
Release of Test Results	28
Official Score Certificates and Score Reports	28
Scaled Scores	29
Score Proficiency Descriptions	29
Abilities Measured	29
Percentile Rank	29
Reliability	29
Standard Error of Measurement (SEM)	
Score Review Requests	
Testing Irregularities	
Repeat Test Takers	
Validity	31
Test Score Data Retention	

Policy and Guidelines for the Use of TOEIC® Listening and Reading Test Scores	32
Introduction	32
Policies	32
Other Score-related Information	32
Guidelines	
Appropriate Uses of <i>TOEIC</i> ® Listening and Reading Test Scores	
Appropriate Uses	34
Misuse	34
Comments	34

For more information, visit us on the web at www.ets.org/toeic or contact your local ETS Preferred Network (EPN) office. A list of local EPN offices can be found on the web at www.ets.org/toeic. If there is no ETS Preferred Network office in your country, please contact us at:

Mail

TOEIC® Program Educational Testing Service Rosedale Road Princeton, NJ 08541 **Phone:** 1-609-771-7170 **Email:** *TOEIC@ets.org*

Copyright © 2022 by ETS. All rights reserved. ETS, the ETS logo, and TOEIC are registered trademarks of ETS in the United States and other countries.

About the TOEIC® Listening and Reading Test

The *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test is an English-language proficiency test for people whose native language is not English. It was developed to assess the English-language listening and reading skills needed in the workplace and everyday life. TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores indicate how well a person can communicate in English with others in a business setting. The test does not require specialized knowledge or vocabulary beyond that of a person who uses English in everyday workplace activities.

The TOEIC Listening and Reading Test Format

The TOEIC Listening and Reading test is a two-hour multiple-choice test that consists of 200 questions divided into two sections:

• Listening Section: The Listening section tests how well you understand spoken English. It consists of four parts and contains 100 questions administered by CD. You will be asked to answer questions based on a variety of statements, questions, conversations, and talks recorded in English.

Total time: approximately 45 minutes.

• Reading Section: The Reading section includes three parts, testing how well you understand written English. You will read a variety of materials and respond at your own pace to 100 questions based on the content of the materials provided to you.

Total time: 75 minutes.

TOEIC® LISTENING SECTION					
PART	T Listening Comprehension: 100 items				
1	Photographs: 6 questions				
2	Question-Response: 25 questions				
3	Conversations: 39 questions; 13 conversations with 3 questions each				
4	Talks: 30 questions; 10 talks with 3 questions each				

TOEIC® READING SECTION				
PART	Reading Comprehension: 100 items			
5	Incomplete Sentences: 30 questions			
6	Text Completion: 16 questions			
7	Single Passages: 29 questions; 10 reading texts with 2–4 questions each			
7	Multiple Passages: 25 questions; 5 sets of double or triple passages with 5 questions per set			

Frequently Asked Questions

Who takes the TOEIC® Listening and Reading test?

- Personnel who use English in real-life work settings, such as businesses, hotels, hospitals, restaurants, international meetings, conventions, and sporting events
- Managerial, sales, and technical employees in international business, commerce, and industry who require English for their work
- Government agencies looking to make informed decisions
- Academic institutions preparing for student admissions, placement and exiting, as well as measuring the effectiveness of their English-language training programs
- Individuals who are preparing to enter the workplace
- · Candidates for training to be conducted in English
- Individuals in English-language training programs

Why take the TOEIC Listening and Reading test?

The *TOEIC*[®] program is the global standard for assessing English-language communication skills needed in the workplace. The TOEIC tests are the most widely used around the world with more than 14,000 organizations across more than 160 countries trusting TOEIC scores to inform the decisions that matter. As a fair and objective measure of English proficiency, the *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test will enable you to:

- Verify your current level of English proficiency
- Qualify for a new position and/or promotion in a company
- Enhance your professional credentials
- Monitor your progress in English
- Set your own learning goals
- Involve your employer or academic institution in advancing your English ability

Who uses the TOEIC Listening and Reading test?

Many leading companies, academic institutions, and language programs worldwide rely on the TOEIC Listening and Reading test as a fair, objective measure of English-language proficiency for students and business professionals. Individuals who take the test include:

- employees who work at hotels, hospitals, restaurants, international meetings, conventions, and sporting events and need to use English on a daily basis
- individuals employed in managerial, sales, and technical positions in international business, commerce, and industry who use English to communicate in their jobs
- new entrants to the workforce

When and where can I take the TOEIC Listening and Reading test?

The TOEIC test can be administered either through the Public Testing Program or the Institutional Program. For the Public testing program test you register for the test individually by contacting your local EPN office. Institutional testing can be arranged through corporations or other organizations that ask employees, job applicants, or students to take the TOEIC Listening and Reading test. In addition, many language-training programs and schools offer TOEIC testing. If testing has not been arranged through your organization, you can contact your local ETS Preferred Network (EPN) office to find out when and where you can take the test.

How often can I take the TOEIC® Listening and Reading test?

TOEIC[®] Listening and Reading public testing is scheduled by the local EPN office. Contact your local EPN office for more information on test dates, locations, and how to register.

Institutional testing is scheduled by your institution and can be taken as offered. Contact your institution for more information.

How much does the TOEIC Listening and Reading test cost?

TOEIC Listening and Reading prices vary worldwide. To inquire about pricing in your area, contact your local EPN office.

What score do I need to "pass" the TOEIC Listening and Reading test?

The TOEIC Listening and Reading test is not the kind of test that you "pass" or "fail." Not every job or task requires the same level of English proficiency. Because it was developed specifically to meet the needs of the workplace, the TOEIC Listening and Reading test measures many levels of ability. It enables test takers to demonstrate what they currently can accomplish in English. The single, continuous scale also makes it possible for learners to set attainable goals and to measure their progress as their English improves.

Many companies use the TOEIC Listening and Reading test to set their own score standards based on the levels of English necessary to carry out particular responsibilities. Your company may require employees to have a minimum TOEIC score due to the corresponding level of English that is needed on the job. Many companies offer English-language training to help their employees reach target TOEIC scores, which reflect specific levels of proficiency based on professional need.

Also, academic institutions may use certain cut scores to place students in the appropriate English-language course in their training program or for exit exam purposes.

From what kind of contexts are the TOEIC Listening and Reading test questions drawn?

These are some examples of the settings, situations, and formats you may find in TOEIC Listening and Reading test questions:

- Corporate Development: research, product development
- Dining Out: business and informal lunches, banquets, receptions, restaurant reservations
- Entertainment: cinema, theater, music, art, exhibitions, museums, media
- Finance and Budgeting: banking, investments, taxes, accounting, billing
- General Business: contracts, negotiations, mergers, marketing, sales, warranties, business planning, conferences, labor relations

- · Health: medical insurance, visiting doctors, dentists, clinics, hospitals
- Housing/Corporate Property: construction, specifications, buying and renting, electric and gas services
- Manufacturing: assembly lines, plant management, quality control
- Offices: board meetings, committees, letters, memoranda, telephone, fax and e-mail messages, office equipment and furniture, office procedures
- Personnel: recruiting, hiring, retiring, salaries, promotions, job applications, job advertisements, pensions, awards
- Purchasing: shopping, ordering supplies, shipping, invoices
- Technical Areas: electronics, technology, computers, laboratories and related equipment, technical specifications
- Travel: trains, airplanes, taxis, buses, ships, ferries, tickets, schedules, station and airport announcements, car rentals, hotels, reservations, delays, and cancellations

If I have a disability, can I still take the *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test?

If you require special testing arrangements because of a disability, please contact your local EPN member to discuss your needs at least six weeks in advance of the test date. Your local EPN member will make every effort to accommodate you. There is no additional cost for special accommodations.

Among the accommodations that can be provided are extended testing time, breaks, audio testing, large print, braille and non-audio (without oral stimulus) versions of the test, or other aids customarily used by the test taker.

All requests for accommodations must be approved in accordance with *TOEIC*[®] program policies and procedures. These procedures are located on the website at <u>http://www.ets.org/toeic/test-takers/listening-reading/disability-accommodations/</u>

Why does the *TOEIC*[®] program require TOEIC Listening and Reading paper-delivered test takers to use only pencils and no other writing instruments?

It has always been the industry standard, set by makers of the optical scanners used to read answer sheets, that only No. 2 pencils be used to mark responses on the answer sheets. This ensures proper reading of the response ovals during the scoring process. Like other testing programs, ETS requires TOEIC test takers to use only No. 2 pencils to fill in the answer sheets. Other writing instruments, such as pens, are not permitted, as they can make the answers bleed over or stain the answer sheets in a way that causes errors in scanning. ETS makes the No. 2 pencil requirement clear to all test takers, and if the use of other instruments creates errors in the scanning process, the result is the test taker's sole responsibility.

The *TOEIC*[®] program does not permit mechanical pencils, mechanical erasers, or pens into the testing room because security incidents in the past have demonstrated that information can be brought into the test room, or test items can be removed from the test room, using an unapproved writing instrument.

How is the TOEIC Listening and Reading test scored?

Scores are determined by the number of correct answers, which is converted to a scaled score. The score report provides Listening, Reading, and total scaled scores. The total scaled score is derived by adding the 2 scaled scores together.

Why are the TOEIC Listening and Reading test raw scores (i.e., number-correct scores) not reported to test takers?

The *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test item development process includes a rigorous series of reviews that ensure all items meet ETS's quality and fairness standards. Individual test forms are then carefully assembled so that each test form is similar in overall difficulty to other test forms. Nevertheless, some minor variations in test-form difficulty are expected across forms. As a result, a test taker may achieve a higher or lower raw score depending on the individual form (assuming their ability remains the same). In short, raw scores from different test forms are not comparable, due to inevitable differences in overall form difficulty.

For this reason, the *TOEIC*[®] program has established the policy that raw scores should not be reported to test takers. To ensure comparable scores, only scaled scores are reported to test takers. Scaled scores are transformed and derived from test takers' raw scores through a proven statistical procedure called "equating." This procedure adjusts for test-form difficulty and establishes the relationship between test takers' raw and scaled scores so that the scaled scores from different test administrations are comparable.

Why are the *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test raw-scoreto-scaled-score conversion tables not disclosed to the public?

Statistical analysis is conducted after each public testing administration (also known as a Secure Program administration), and a unique raw-score-to-scaled-score conversion table is created for each test form based on statistical equating results. Scaled scores that are comparable across different test forms are then reported back to the test takers. The *TOEIC*[®] scaled score range is from 5 to 495 on both the listening and reading sections.

As each test form will be reused multiple times in different areas of the world, the TOEIC program has a policy not to release test forms, for security reasons. Since test forms are not released to the public, the conversion table that is unique to each test form is not released either. A conversion table, used for reporting scaled scores, is of no practical use to the public when the test form to which it applies is not disclosed. In fact, the conversion table may fall subject to misuse if it is applied to the wrong test form and results in incorrect scaled scores being calculated.

Why are TOEIC Listening and Reading test items and answer keys not disclosed to the public?

TOEIC[®] Listening and Reading test forms are used in multiple test administrations and therefore must be maintained under secure conditions at all times. If the items and answer keys were disclosed to the public, such exposure would erode the integrity of the testing program. In addition, TOEIC Listening and Reading test items and answer keys are protected by copyright law as property of ETS, the copyright holder of the TOEIC tests. For this reason, ETS's TOEIC Listening and Reading test items and answer keys should not be disclosed or used for any purpose without written permission by ETS.

Preparing to Take the *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading Test

How to Get Ready to Take the *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading Test

The *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test is not based on the content of any particular English course but rather on your English-language proficiency — your overall ability to use English. Improvement in proficiency may take some time and is generally achieved through a combination of practice and study. The TOEIC Listening and Reading test does not test business knowledge, and you are not required to know specialized business and technical vocabulary beyond what is used in everyday work activities.

Before taking the TOEIC Listening and Reading test, there are several things you can do to prepare for the test and improve your English proficiency:

- Become familiar with the test format and know how to mark your answers on the answer sheet. You can then focus your attention on the test questions themselves.
- Carefully review the test directions and the sample questions on pages 12–20, and the sample Background Questionnaire and sample answer sheet on pages 22–25.
- Immerse yourself in the language as frequently as possible and in as many ways as possible if it has been some time since you have had contact with English. Reading, watching TV and videos, listening to recordings, taking an English course, and speaking with friends and colleagues are some of the ways to practice English.

The official TOEIC website has many resources you may find helpful to familiarize yourself with the test:

- test preparation material
- scoring information
- frequently asked questions (FAQs)

Test Day Procedures

During the Test

- Work quickly and carefully.
- Do not spend too much time on any one question.
- Mark your answers on your answer sheet and not in the test book.
- Mark only one answer for each question. If you mark more than one answer, that question will be counted wrong even if one of the answers you marked is correct.
- You will receive credit only for answers marked in the circles on the answer sheet. You will not receive credit for answers entered in the test book. Your score will be based on the number of questions you answer correctly. There is no penalty for guessing.
- Try to answer every question to the best of your ability.

- Pay close attention to the time during the Reading section of the test. In the Reading section (75 minutes) you have to pace yourself, so work quickly and if you do not know the answer to a question, come back to it later.
- You may not use note paper.

Identification Requirements

All test takers must read Part 1. Depending on whether you will be taking the test within or outside your country of citizenship, you must also read either Part 2 or Part 3, as appropriate.

Part 1: Information for All Test Takers

- You must have acceptable and valid ID with a signature and photograph to be admitted to a test center. Expired documents are not acceptable.
- The photograph on your ID document must be recent and recognizable. Original documents must be presented; copies are not acceptable. Identification requirements are strictly enforced. It is your responsibility to read and understand the instructions and requirements.
- If you don't have one government issued ID with both a photograph and a signature, you may present two primary government-issued photo IDs without signatures.
- If you arrive at the test center without the required identification, the test administrator will not admit you, you cannot take the test, and you forfeit your test fee.

When registering for the test, you must use exactly the same name that appears on the primary identification document you will present at the test center. Make sure to provide your entire first (given name) and entire surname (family name). Do not register under a nickname. If the name shown on your primary identification does not match the name used at registration, you will not be permitted to take the test and you will forfeit your test fee. Check the name on your registration confirmation document. If the name does not match the name on your primary ID document, contact your local EPN office.

- Only misspellings of your name can be corrected at check-in name changes will not be made.
 If your name has changed for any reason, including marriage, you must still present primary identification in the name under which you registered, or you will not be permitted to take the test.
- If the test center administrator questions the ID you present, you will be required to present a secondary ID.
- If positive confirmation cannot be made, you may be refused admission to the test center and you will forfeit your test fee. Admittance to the test center does not imply that your form of identification is valid or that your scores will be reported. All reported cases of questionable ID are subject to review and approval by the ETS Office of Testing Integrity and/or the local EPN office.
- Test center personnel will check your identification before assigning you a seat at the test center. The administrator will check your signature and photograph to verify that you are the person in your photo identification.
- The photograph on your ID document must be recent and recognizable. For example, a ten-year-old photograph taken during childhood is not acceptable.

Acceptable Primary Identification Documents

- Passport with photograph and signature
- Driver's license with photograph and signature
- State identification with photograph and signature
- National identification with photograph and signature
- Military identification with photograph and signature

Acceptable Secondary Identification Documents

If your primary identification is missing either a photograph or signature, you must present one of the following secondary IDs that can be used to meet the photograph or signature requirement; you must present one of the following secondary IDs **in addition to** your primary ID. Secondary IDs that can be used to meet the photograph or signature requirements are:

- A government-issued identification document that has not expired including, but not limited to, a passport, driver's license, state identification, national identification, or military identification. (There are some exceptions: see "Unacceptable Identification Documents" below.)
- Student ID

Unacceptable Identification Documents

- Any expired ID
- Draft classification card
- Credit or debit card of any kind
- Social Security card
- Learner's permit or any temporary identification document
- International driver's license
- International student ID
- Notary-prepared letter or document
- Employee identification card
- Birth certificate
- Photocopy of ID
- · Any document that is presented on a phone or electronic device
- Any document that is not recognized by a government agency

If you cannot meet the specified ID requirements or if you have questions about ID, please contact your local EPN office before registering for the test.

Part 2: If Testing WITHIN Your Country of Citizenship

Only one form of primary ID is needed if your primary ID document contains a photograph and signature.

Please see the list of acceptable primary ID documents on the previous page. However, if the test administrator has any concerns about the primary ID document, you will be required to present a secondary ID from the list above.

If your primary ID does not contain your signature, you must either sign the document or present an additional ID from the list of secondary identification documents. The secondary ID cannot be expired and must contain a recent, recognizable photograph and your signature. If you do not have an ID with a photograph and a signature, then you must present two primary ID documents with a photograph.

Part 3: If Testing OUTSIDE Your Country of Citizenship

You **must present your passport** as your primary identification document (citizens of European, Schengen Zone, Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) Arab Countries or Mercosur Countries, see special requirements on this page). If you do not meet this requirement, your test scores may not be reported.

If your passport is not written in English-language letters, you must also present an additional ID from the list of secondary identification documents (see "Acceptable Secondary Identification Documents" on the prior page) that contains a recent, recognizable photograph and is in English.

If your passport **does not contain your signature**, you must either sign your passport or present an additional ID from the list of secondary identification documents (see "Acceptable Secondary Identification Documents" on page 8).

United States military personnel may present their United States military ID cards for admission to test centers. If a military ID card does not contain a photograph and signature, a secondary ID is also required.

Testing in European Union/Schengen Zone/Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) Arab Countries or Mercosur Countries

If you are testing in a European Union, Schengen Zone, Mercosur or Arab States of the Gulf (GCC) country other than the one where you reside, you can use your valid national or European identity card, if you have one. The card must contain your name; a recent, recognizable photograph; your date of birth and your signature. If this ID does not contain all of these elements, you will be required to present a supplemental ID.

Test Center Procedures and Regulations

The following procedures and regulations apply during the entire test session, which begins when you are admitted to the test center and ends when you leave the test center:

- Dress so that you can adapt to any room temperature.
- Friends or relatives who accompany you to the test center will not be permitted to wait in the test center or be in contact with you while you are taking the test. Except for ETS-authorized observers, visitors are not allowed in the testing room while testing is in progress.
- ID verification at the test center may include thumb printing, photographing, video recording, signature comparison, or other forms of electronic ID or biometric confirmation. If you refuse to participate, you will not be permitted to test and you will forfeit the test fee. This is in addition to the requirement that you must present acceptable and valid ID.
- Other than ID, personal items are not allowed in the testing room. Before the test, you will receive
 instructions from test center staff regarding where to deposit items such as mobile phones, pagers,
 handbags, and study materials. Storage space is limited, so plan accordingly. You will not have access
 to your personal items during the test or any unscheduled break.
- Test centers assume no responsibility for test taker's personal belongings.
- The test administrator will assign you a seat.

- On occasion, weather conditions or other circumstances beyond the control of ETS or the test center may require a delayed start or the rescheduling of your test. In the event that a technical problem at the test center makes it necessary to cancel your test session or if it is later determined that your scores could not be reported, you will be offered the opportunity to retest free of charge or receive a full refund of the original test fee.
- No test taker will be admitted after test materials have been distributed.
- Using any aid in connection with the test, including pens; mechanical pencils; scan pens or other scanning devices; calculators; calculator or computing watches; analog, digital or smart watches; wearable technology; books; pamphlets; notes; unauthorized scratch paper; rulers; highlighter pens; stereos or radios with headphones; mobile phones; smart phones; watch alarms; stop watches; dictionaries; test preparation materials; translators; and any electronic, listening, recording, scanning or photographic devices are not permitted. Paper of any kind is not permitted in the testing room.
- You may not mark or underline words in the test book or make notes in the test book or on the answer sheet.
- You must have the supervisor's permission to leave the testing room. You may not leave the immediate testing area of the testing room or the test center building during the test or during any unscheduled break. Any lost time cannot be made up.
- There is no scheduled break during the *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test. If you must leave the testing room, you are required to give the supervisor your identification document(s), test book and answer sheet before you leave the room. You will not be permitted to make up the time you lose.
- At the conclusion of the test, you will be required to return your test book and answer sheet to the test supervisor. You must remain in your seat until all materials are collected.

Report Suspicious Behavior

Although TOEIC Listening and Reading tests are administered under strict supervision and security measures, testing irregularities may sometimes occur. Contact your local EPN office as soon as possible to report any observed behavior that may lead to an invalid score. Examples include, but are not limited to:

- Copying from another test taker
- Taking the test for another person
- Having access to test questions before the test
- Providing test questions or answers to the test, including proctors and administrators
- Taking test questions or answers out of a testing room
- Using or accessing a mobile phone or any electronic device or wearable technology
- Using a fake ID
- Accessing or using notes

Report Cheating:

Web: www.ets.org/security

Email: ReportCheating@toeic.org

Phone: 609-406-5430

Fax: 609-406-9709

All information will remain strictly confidential.

Dismissal from Test Session

A test administrator or supervisor is authorized to dismiss you from a test session and/or your scores may be withheld and ultimately canceled, and your test fees forfeited for any actions that violate the policies and procedures set forth herein and/or communicated at the test center including, but not limited to, the following:

- Attempting to take the test, or taking the test, for someone else or having someone else take the test for you
- Failing to provide acceptable identification as described herein, including refusal to allow a photograph and/or fingerprint to be taken
- Obtaining improper access to the test, a part of the test, or information about the test (This includes having test questions or answers in advance of the test administration and bringing pre-knowledge of test information into the test center in any form including, but not limited to, identification documents, prohibited devices, and any other method listed as an aid in connection to the test.)
- Having a mobile phone, smartphone (e.g., Android[™], or iPhone), tablet, or any other electronic, listening, recording, scanning, photographic device, or wearable technology in the test center. If you are found to be in possession of any of these devices before, during, or after the test administration, your device may be inspected and/or confiscated, and you will be dismissed from the test. Your test fees will be forfeited and your scores will be canceled, even if dismissal is not enforced on the day of the test. You may also be banned from taking any future ETS test.
- Creating a disturbance (Disruptive behavior in any form will not be tolerated. The test administrator or supervisor has sole discretion in determining what constitutes disruptive behavior.)
- Attempting to give or receive assistance (Communication in any form is not permitted during the test administration. Discussion or sharing of test content or answers during the test administration, during breaks, and after the test is prohibited.)
- Removing or attempting to remove test content from the test center (Under no circumstances may test content or any part of the test content be removed, reproduced, and/or disclosed by any means [e.g., hard copy, verbally, electronically] to any person or entity.)
- Bringing a weapon or firearm into the test center
- Bringing food, beverages, or tobacco into the testing room, unless you have received prior approval due to a disability or health-related need
- · Leaving the test center building during the test session or during breaks
- Leaving the testing room without permission
- Taking excessive or extended unscheduled breaks during the test session (Test center administrators are required to strictly monitor unscheduled breaks and report test takers who take excessive or extended breaks.)
- Referring to, looking through, or working on any test or test section when not authorized to do so, or working after time has been called
- Failing to follow any of the test administration regulations in this Examinee Handbook, given by the test administrator/supervisor, or specified in any test materials

ETS and the local EPN office reserve the right to take any and all actions for failure to comply with test administration regulations or the test administrator's directions, or where the validity of the scores is questionable. This includes, but is not limited to, barring you from taking any future ETS test and/or withholding or canceling your scores. If your scores are canceled, they will not be reported, and your registration and test fees will not be refunded.

Sample Questions for the *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading Test

With 200 questions, the *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test measures a wide range of English proficiency. The following sample questions do not indicate the full range of difficulty you will find in an actual TOEIC Listening and Reading test.

General Directions

The following general directions are taken directly from the test book. After the general directions are specific directions for each part of the test, along with sample questions for each of the parts.

This test is designed to measure your English- language ability. The test is divided into two sections: Listening and Reading.

You must mark all of your answers on the separate answer sheet. For each question, you should select the best answer from the answer choices given. Then, on your answer sheet, you should find the number of the question and fill in the space that corresponds to the letter of the answer that you have selected. If you decide to change an answer, completely erase your old answer and then mark your new answer.

Section I: Listening

In the Listening test, you will be asked to demonstrate how well you understand spoken English. The entire Listening test will last approximately 45 minutes. There are four parts, and directions are given for each part. You must mark your answers on the separate answer sheet. Do not write your answers in your test book.

Part I: Photographs

Directions: For each question in this part, you will hear four statements about a picture in your test book.

When you hear the statements, you must select the one statement that best describes what you see in the picture. Then find the number of the question on your answer sheet and mark your answer. The statements will not be printed in your test book and will be spoken only one time.

Look at the example item below.

Example

You will see:



You will hear: Now listen to the four statements.

- (A) They're moving some furniture.
- (B) They're entering a meeting room.

- (C) They're sitting at a table.
- (D) They're cleaning the carpet.

Statement (C), "They're sitting at a table," is the best description of the picture, so you should select answer (C) and mark it on your answer sheet.

Sample Questions

Question 1

You will see:

1.



You will hear: 1. Look at the picture marked number 1 in your test book.

- (A) He's shoveling some soil.
- (B) He's moving a wheelbarrow.

- (C) He's cutting some grass.
- (D) He's planting a tree.

Question 2

You will see:



2.

You will hear:

Look at the picture marked number 2 in your test book.

- (A) A woman is putting on a pair of shoes.
- (B) A woman is dusting a television screen.

- (C) A woman is watching television.
- (D) A woman is plugging a power cord into an outlet.

Part 2: Question-Response

Directions: You will hear a question or statement and three responses spoken in English. They will not be printed in your test book and will be spoken only one time. Select the best response to the question or statement and mark the letter (A), (B), or (C) on your answer sheet.

Example

You will hear: Where is the meeting room?

You will also hear: (A) To meet the new director. (B) It's the first room on the right.

(C) Yes, at two o'clock.

The best response to the question "Where is the meeting room?" is choice (B), "It's the first room on the right," so (B) Is the correct answer. You should mark answer (B) on your answer sheet.

SAMPLE QUESTIONS

Question 7

You will hear:	7.	Where's the new fax machine?
You will also hear:	(B)	Next to the water fountain. I'll send a fax tomorrow. By Wednesday.
Question 8		
You will hear:	8.	How well does Thomas play the violin?
You will also hear:		Sure, I really like it. Oh, he's a professional.

(C) I'll turn down the volume.

Question 9

You will hear:	9.	Martin, are you driving to the client meeting?
----------------	----	--

- You will also hear: (A) Oh, would you like a ride?
 - (B) Nice to meet you, too.
 - (C) I thought it went well!

Question 10

You will hear: 10. Mariko announced that she's retiring in April.

- You will also hear: (A) How many did you count?
 - (B) I'm not tired at all.
 - (C) Right, she's been here twenty-five years.

Part 3: Conversations

Directions: You will hear some conversations between two or more people. You will be asked to answer three questions about what the speakers say in each conversation. Select the best response to each question and mark the letter (A), (B), (C), or (D) on your answer sheet. The conversations will not be printed in your test book and will be spoken only one time.

SAMPLE QUESTIONS

You will hear: Questions 32 through 34 refer to the following conversation:

(Woman)	Hello. I'm calling about a coffee machine I purchased from your Web site. It stopped working even though I haven't had it for very long. I expected it to last much longer than this.
(Man)	Oh, I'm sorry to hear that. Our warranty covers products for up to a year. Do you know when you bought it?

(Woman)	I've had it for a little over a year, so the warranty has probably just expired. This is so disappointing.					
(Man)	Well, I'll tell you what we can do. Although we can't replace it, since you're a valued customer I can offer you a coupon for forty percent off your next purchase.					
You will						
then hear:	<i>32.</i> Why is the woman calling?					
You will read:	32. Why is the woman calling?					
	 (A) To cancel an order (B) To complain about a product (C) To redeem a gift card (D) To renew a warranty 					
You will hear:	33. What does the man ask the woman about?					
You will read:	33. What does the man ask the woman about?					
	(A) A model name(B) A brand of coffee	(C) A catalog number(D) A date of purchase				
You will hear:	34. What does the man offer to do?	34. What does the man offer to do?				
You will read:	34. What does the man offer to do?					
	(A) Provide a discount(B) Send a free sample	(C) Extend a warranty(D) Issue a refund				
You will hear:	Questions 41 through 43 refer to the following conversation and list.					
(Woman)	Larry, we have a new graphic designer starting next month and we'll need to set her up with a laptop and extra monitor. Can you place orders for those?					
(Man)	Sure. You know our vendor has raised their prices, right?					
(Woman)	Really?					
(Man)	Yes. I just looked at the catalog a few minutes ago, and their current models are more expensive.					
(Woman)	Right. Well, our budget per work area is \$1,000 maximum. So let's order the system with the largest screen that falls within that price.					
(Man)	OK. I'll take a look at the prices again and place the order.					

Screen Size	System Price
11 inches	\$799
13 inches	\$899
15 inches	\$999
17 inches	\$1,099

You will

then hear: 41.

41. What does the woman ask the man to do?

- You will read: **41.** What does the woman ask the man to do?
 - (A) Order some equipment
 - (B) Find a new vendor

- (C) Repair a laptop
- (D) Contact a job candidate

You will hear:	42.	What problem does the man mention?		
You will read:	42.	What problem does the man mention?		
	(B)	A designer has left the company. A supplier has increased its prices. A computer model has been discontinued. A departmental budget has been reduced.		
You will hear:	43.	Look at the graphic. What size screen will the man	ר ord	ler?
You will read:	43.	Look at the graphic. What size screen will the ma	n or	der?
	(A) (B)	11 inches 13 inches	. ,	15 inches 17 inches

Part 4: Talks

Directions: You will hear some talks given by a single speaker. You will be asked to answer three questions about what the speaker says in each talk. Select the best response to each question and mark the letter (A), (B), (C), or (D) on your answer sheet. The talks will not be printed in your test book and will be spoken only one time.

SAMPLE QUESTIONS

You will hear: Questions 71 through 73 refer to the following telephone message.

(Man)	Hello Mr. Lee, this is Thomas from BKS Auto Shop calling with some information about your car repair. I know we told you that it would take until next week to get the part we ordered, but we got the part early, and I was able to finish the repair. We're going to be closing for the day in a few minutes, but you're welcome to come get your car anytime tomorrow. If you need a ride to the shop tomorrow, let me know, and I can arrange one for you.				
You will then hear:	71. What does the speaker say about the repair?				
You will read:	71. What does the speaker say about the repair?				
	(A) It is not required.(B) It has been finished early.	(C) It will be inexpensive.(D) It is covered by a warranty.			
You will hear:	72. When can the listener pick up his car?				
You will read:	72. When can the listener pick up his car?				
	(A) Today (B) Tomorrow	(C) Next week(D) In two weeks			
You will hear:	73. What does the speaker offer to do?				
You will read:	73. What does the speaker offer to do?				
	(A) Look for a used part(B) Refund the cost of a charge	(C) Send an invoice(D) Arrange a ride			

Section II: Reading

In the Reading test, you will read a variety of texts and answer several different types of reading comprehension questions. The entire Reading test will last 75 minutes. There are three parts, and directions are given for each part. You are encouraged to answer as many questions as possible within the time allowed.

You must mark your answers on the separate answer sheet. Do not write your answers in your test book.

Part 5: Incomplete Sentences

Directions: A word or phrase is missing in each of the following sentences. Four answer choices are given below each sentence. Select the best answer to complete the sentence. Then mark the letter (A), (B), (C), or (D) on your answer sheet.

SAMPLE QUESTIONS

101. C	Cust	omer reviews indicate that many modern mobile	devio	ces are often unnecessarily
(.	(A)	complication	(C)	complicate
((B)	complicates	(D)	complicated
		al Nawzad has received top performance reviews _ s ago.		he joined the sales department two
	·	despite	(C)	since
		except	(-)	during
		•		5
		on Corporation's continuing education policy state ty and focus.	es tha	at learning new skills enhances cre-
()	(A)	regular	(C)	regulate
((B)	regularity	(D)	regularly
104. A	Amc	ong recognized at the company awards co	erem	ony were senior business analyst Natalie
C	Obi	and sales associate Peter Comeau.		
((A)	who	(C)	they
((B)	whose		those
105. A	All c	lothing sold in Develyn's Boutique is made from n	atura	I materials and contains no dyes.
(.	(A)	immediate	(C)	reasonable
((B)	synthetic	(D)	assumed

Part 6: Text Completion

Directions: Read the texts that follow. A word or phrase is missing in some of the sentences. Four answer choices are given below each of the sentences. Select the best answer to complete the text. Then mark the letter (A), (B), (C), or (D) on your answer sheet.

SAMPLE QUESTIONS

Questions 131–134 refer to the following e-mail.

To: Project Leads

From: James Pak

Subject: Training Courses

To all Pak Designs project leaders:

In the coming weeks, we will be organizing several training sessions for ______ employees. At Pak

Designs, we believe that with the proper help and support from our senior project leaders, less experienced staff can quickly ______ a deep

understanding of the design process. _____, they

can improve their ability to communicate effectively across divisions. When employees at all experience levels interact, every employee's competency level rises and the business overall benefits. For that reason, we are urging experienced project leaders to attend each one of the interactive seminars that will be held throughout the coming month. _____

Thank you for your support.

James Pak

Pak Designs

131. (A) interest

- (B) interests
- (C) interested
- (D) interesting
- **132.** (A) develop
 - (B) raise
 - (C) open
 - (D) complete

133. (A) After all

- (B) For
- (C) Even so
- (D) At the same time
- **134.** (A) Let me explain our plans for on-site staff training.
 - (B) We hope that you will strongly consider joining us.
 - (C) Today's training session will be postponed until Monday.
 - (D) This is the first in a series of such lectures.

Part 7: Reading Comprehension

Directions: In this part you will read a selection of texts, such as magazine and newspaper articles, e-mails, and instant messages. Each text or set of texts is followed by several questions. Select the best answer for each question and mark the letter (A), (B), (C), or (D) on your answer sheet.

SAMPLE QUESTIONS

Questions 147–148 refer to the following advertisement.



147. What is suggested about the car?

- (A) It was recently repaired.
- (B) It has had more than one owner.

(B) She finds it difficult to maintain.

- (C) It is very fuel efficient.
- (D) It has been on sale for six months.
- 148. According to the advertisement, why is Ms. Ghorbani selling her car?
 - (A) She cannot repair the car's temperature control.
- (C) She would like to have a newer model.
- (D) She is leaving for another country.
- Questions 152–153 refer to the following text message chain.

•	•
SAM BACH My first flight was delayed, so I missed my connection in	11:59 Beijing.
SAM BACH So now, I'm going to be on a flight arriving in Kansai at 1	12:00 8:00.
AKIRA OTANI OK. Same airline?	12:05
SAM BACH It's still Fly Right Airlines. It will be later in the day but stil time for our client meeting.	12:06 I in
AKIRA OTANI I'll confirm the arrival time. Do you have any checked ba	12:06 gs?
SAM BACH I do. Would you mind meeting me at the door after I go through customs?	12:10
AKIRA OTANI Sure thing. Parking spots can be hard to find, but now I'll have extra time to drive around and look.	12:15
SAM BACH Yes, sorry about that. See you then!	12:16
	Send
٠	

152. What is suggested about Mr. Bach?

- (A) He has been to Kansai more than once.
- (B) He currently works in Beijing.
- (C) He is on a business trip.
- (D) He works for Fly Right Airlines.
- 153. At 12:15, what does Mr. Otani mean when he writes, "Sure thing"?
 - (A) He has confirmed the arrival time of a flight.
 - (B) He is certain he will be able to find a parking place.
- (C) He agrees to wait at the door near the customs area.
- (D) He knows Mr. Bach must pass through customs.

Questions 196–200 refer to the following advertisement, online shopping cart, and e-mail.

Sparky Paints, Inc. 🐦

Sparky Paints, Inc., makes it easy to select the right colors for your home. Browse through hundreds of colors on our Web site, www.sparkypaints.com. Select your top colors, and we'll send free samples right to your door. Our color samples are three times larger than typical samples found in home-improvement stores and come with self-adhesive backing, allowing you to adhere them to your walls so you can easily see how colors will coordinate in your home. When you're ready to begin painting, simply select your chosen colors online, and we'll hip the pain of your choice to arrive at your home within 3-5 business days, or within 2 business days for an additional expedited shipping fee.

*Actual colors may differ slightly from what appears on your monitor. For this reason, we recommend ordering several samples in similar shades.

From:	ArunPhan <arun.phan@tnet.com></arun.phan@tnet.com>				
To:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
Date:	Date: March12				
Subject:	Order#3397]			
the one I had as appear right nex end. Could you	ling my order #3397—it arrived this morning. Unfortunately, the paint was not ked for. I had selected color SP 944 but received SP 945 (Ocean Waves). They it to each other on your Web site, so the two may have been confused at your send me the correct paint, along with additional samples that are close in color t sample worked well in my house; the others looked too green on my walls.	A			

http://ww	w.sparkypaints.com/shop	pingcart			
		Sparky Pa	aints, Inc. 💉		7
	Order Summary	#3397	Customer:	Arun Phan	
	Item	Size	Quantity	Price	
	Caspian Blue SP 237	n/a	1	\$0.00	
	Deep Sea Blue SP 298	n/a	1	\$0.00	
	Stormy Blue SP 722	n/a	1	\$0.00	
	Misty Gray SP 944	Gallon	2	\$50.00	
		E	ix (8 percent) kpedited shippir otal	\$4.00 ng \$18.99 \$72.99	
				Proceed t	o Checkout

196. In the advertisement, the word "top" in paragraph 1, line 2, is closest in meaning to

- (A) maximum
- (B) favorite
- 197. What are Sparky Paints customers advised to do?
 - (A) Apply an adhesive to color samples
 - (B) Visit a store to compare paint colors
- 198. What is most likely true about order #3397?
 - (A) It arrived within two business days.
 - (B) It included an extra sample.
- 199. Which color does Mr. Phan indicate that he likes?
 - (A) Caspian Blue
 - (B) Deep Sea Blue
- 200. What problem does Mr. Phan mention in his e-mail?
 - (A) He received the wrong item.
 - (B) He was charged the wrong price.

- (C) It was shipped in February.
- (D) It contained four gallons of paint.

(C) Adjust the color on their computer monitor

(D) Order samples of several similar colors

(C) Stormy Blue

(C) important

(D) upper

- (D) Misty Gray
- (C) The delivery time was too long.
- (D) The instructions were too confusing.

Answer Ke	у					
PART 1	PART 2	PART 3	PART 4	PART 5	PART 6	PART 6
1. A	7. A	32. B	71. B	101. D	131. C	147. A
2. D	8. B	33. D	72. B	102. C	132. A	148. D
	9. A	34. A	73. D	103. D	133. D	152. C
	10. C	41. A		104. D	134. B	153. C
		42. B		105. B		196. B
		43. C				197. D
						198. A
						199. C
						200. A

TOEIC® Background Questionnaire and Answer Sheet

In order to provide enhanced feedback to *TOEIC*[®] clients and test takers, the *TOEIC*[®] program will ask you to complete the *TOEIC*[®] *Background Questionnaire* at the testing session before you take the *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test.

Background Questionnaire

The *TOEIC Background Questionnaire* asks about your educational, work-related, English-language, and TOEIC test-taking experience. Your responses to the questionnaire enable your organization to learn more about the backgrounds of people who take the test and some of the factors that affect TOEIC scores and improvement in English. Your responses to the questionnaire are kept confidential and do not in any way affect your TOEIC scores. We encourage you to answer all of the questions. A sample of the questionnaire is included on pages 22 and 23.

Answer Sheet

A sample of the answer sheet appears on pages 24 and 25 of this book.

Accent Marks

If your name (family name and first name) is written with any accent marks, you should complete the top half of section 1 on side 1 of the answer sheet. Above the boxes where you will write your name, there is an area that contains accent marks. You should fill in the circle that corresponds to the accent mark above each letter that contains an accent.

Group Code

Your test administrator may ask you to enter a number on side 2, section 10 of the answer sheet. The purpose of this group code is to enable TOEIC clients to keep track of the performance of a group of people who take the TOEIC Listening and Reading test two or more times as part of a specific English-language training program. The test administrator will give you the appropriate number to enter in the group code section if your organization has asked for this option.

Custom Codes

Your test administrator may ask you to enter a number or numbers on side 2, section 12 of the answer sheet. The purpose of custom codes is to keep track of the performance of certain TOEIC test takers or groups of test takers. The test administrator will give you the appropriate number or numbers to enter in the custom codes section if your organization has asked for this option.

Before the actual test begins, if you have any questions about the *TOEIC Background Questionnaire* and answer sheet, please ask your test administrator.



Background Questionnaire

Read the choices below each question and select the one best answer. Fill in only one answer for each question.

Section I.

Your educational and/or work-related background

1. Choose either the level of education in which you are currently enrolled or the highest level that you have completed.

TOEIC

- Α. Elementary school (primary school)
- General secondary school (junior high school) Β.
- Secondary school for university entrance C. qualification or equivalent (high school)
- D Vocational/technical high school
- Vocational/technical school after high school E.
- Community/junior college (for associate degree) F.
- G. Undergraduate college or university (for bachelor's degree)
- Graduate or professional school H. (for master's or doctoral degree)
- Language institution I.
- 2. Choose the major that you are currently enrolled in or the major of your highest degree. (The majors shown in parentheses are examples only.)
 - Liberal arts (education, fine arts, languages, Α. literature, music, psychology)
 - B. Social studies/law (international studies, law studies, political science, sociology)
 - C. Accounting/business/economics
 - D. Finance/marketing/trading
 - Sciences (agriculture, computer science, E. mathematics, physics, statistics)
 - F. Health (medicine, nursing, pharmacy, public health)
 - Engineering/architecture G.
 - Η. Other/none
- 3. Which of the following best describes your current status?
 - A. I am employed full-time (including self-employed).
 - B. I am employed part-time and/or study part-time.
 - I am not employed. (Skip to Question #6.) C.
 - I am a full-time student. (Skip to Question #6.) D.
 - Copyright ©2007. EDUCATIONAL TESTING SERVICE, ETS, ETS logo and TOEIC are registered trademarks of Educational Testing Service.

- 4. If you are currently employed, which industry best describes that of your current employer?
 - 01. Agriculture/fishing/forestry/mining
 - 02. Construction/building design
 - 03. Manufacturing-food
 - 04. Manufacturing—pharmaceuticals

 - 05. Manufacturing—chemicals06. Manufacturing—fabric/paper07. Manufacturing—oil/petroleum/rubber
 - 08. Manufacturing—steel/other metals
 - 09. Manufacturing—Machinery/fine machinery
 - 10. Manufacturing—electronic
 - 11. Manufacturing—vehicles (includes manufacturing of all modes of transportation)
 - 12. Manufacturing—cement/glass
 - 13. Manufacturing—clothing
 - 14. Manufacturing—other
 - 15. Service-education (high school equivalent or below)
 - 16. Service—education (college equivalent or above, assessment, research)
 - 17. Service—court/legislative/municipal/prefecture
 - 18. Service—foreign affairs
 - 19. Service—armed forces
 - 20. Service—health/hospital/medical research
 - 21. Service—hotel/recreation/restaurant/travel
 - 22. Service-other
 - 23. Public utilities production/management (electricity/water supply)
 - 24. Broadcasting/mass media
 - 25. Telecommunication
 - 26. Retail/wholesale
 - 27. Trading
 - 28. Accounting/banking/finance/security
 - 29. Insurance
 - 30. Real estate
 - 31. Transportation
 - 32. Other
- 5. If you are currently employed, which of the following best describes the type of job you do? (The jobs shown in parentheses are examples only.)
 - Management (executive, manager, director) Α.
 - Scientific/technical professionals (engineer, B. mathematician, programmer, researcher,
 - scientist) Teaching/training
 - C. Professional specialist (accountant, broker, D
 - financial specialist, lawyer)

ETS



Background Questionnaire Side 2

E. Technician (carpenter, electrician, equipment operator, plumber)

TOEIC

- F. Marketing/sales (foreign exchange broker, marketing analyst, real estate agent, sales representative, travel agent)
- G. Clerical/administrative (office staff member, receptionist, secretary)
- H. Services (customer service representative, human resources representative, hotel staff member, public relations representative)
- I. Other

Section II.

Your English-language experience

- 6. How many years have you spent studying English?
 - A. Less than or equal to 4 years
 - B. More than 4 years but less than or equal to 6 years
 - C. More than 6 years but less than or equal to 10 years
 - D. More than 10 years
- 7. Which of the following language skills are/were most emphasized?
 - A. Listening
 - B. Reading
 - C. Speaking
 - D. Writing
 - E. Listening and speaking
 - F. Reading and writing
 - G. Listening, reading, speaking, and writing
- 8. How much time must you use English in your daily life?
 - A. None at all
 - B. 1 to 10%
 - C. 11 to 20%
 - D. 21 to 50%
 - E. 51 to 100%
- 9. Which of the following English-language skills do you use most often?
 - A. Listening
 - B. Reading
 - C. Speaking
 - D. Writing
 - E. Listening and speaking
 - F. Reading and writing
 - G. Listening, reading, speaking, and writing

- 10. How often has difficulty with English affected your ability to communicate?
 - A. Almost never
 - B. Seldom
 - C. Sometimes
 - D. Frequently
 - E. Almost always
- 11. Have you ever lived in a country in which English is the main spoken language?
 - A. No (Skip to Question #13.)
 - B. Yes, for less than 6 months
 - C. Yes, for 6 to 12 months
 - D. Yes, for more than 1 but less than or equal to 2 years
 - E. Yes, for more than 2 years
- 12. What was your main purpose for living in a country in which English is the main spoken language?
 - A. To study (in other than an English-language program)
 - B. To participate in an English-language program
 - C. To travel (not work related)
 - D. To work
 - E. Other

Section III.

Your experience in taking the TOEIC test

- 13. Before today, how many times have you taken the TOEIC test?
 - A. Never
 - B. Once
 - C. Twice
 - D. Three times or more
- 14. What is your main purpose for taking today's TOEIC test?
 - A. For a job application
 - B. For promotion
 - C. To assess the effectiveness of an Englishlanguage program
 - D. To assess future learning needs
 - E. To graduate from a course of study

//	_																-								•		D							-								
ÉI		<u>5</u>)		7	Ċ		7				• Da	arke	nly p n th clea	e ci		s co	mpl	etel	y				1	WAF	CC	NG		REC'	TIO	INS			RRE			s						
1 N	IAN	1E	e	one eac	las h b	st (fa ox,	ami fill i	ly/s	urn 1e c	ame	e) na	ame	, le	ave	a s	pac	e b	etv	veei	n na	fami ame r nai	es. I	n th	e s	eco	nd	are	a, p	rint	t yo	ur fi	rst	(giv	en)	na	me	(s).	Bel	ow		2 SE	Л
						•																																			3	
		0	0)@)\) ()) ()	0	0		()					0 •	1 × 1	0		\odot	\odot	\odot	\odot		0	0 ()		0	0 ()	0 ()	\odot	0) ()) ()	•		
		Ø	Ø	0	0						\bigcirc	0		Ø		Ø		0		Ø	\sim	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	Õ	Õ	Õ	Õ	\overline{O}	Ø	Õ	Ø	Õ	Õ	Ó	Ø	Õ) Č				
																				\sim		\bigcirc	\bigcirc	(\cdot)	\cup	(\cdot)			(\bigcirc)			\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc) 😶) 📿			
6																				\simeq	١	~	~	~	~	~	6	6	6	6	6	٢	٦	٩	6	6	6	<u>6</u>)		00	
																																									$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 2 \\ 2 \end{array} $	
) (A)		3	
B	B) B) C										· ~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~)		(4) (5) (5)	
	D	D		0	0															\sim																					66	
		E	Ē	E	E)Ē	Ē	Ē	E	E	E	Ē	E	E	E	Ē	E	E	Ē	Ē	E	E	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē	Ē) Ē		\overline{O}	00
F (G (Б G	(F) (G)																	\sim	(F) (G)	~	~	\sim	\sim	\sim	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~)(F))(G)		8 9 9	
) (H) H) (H) H	H	H	H	H	H	H	H	θ	H	Ĥ	Ĥ	Ĥ	Ĥ	Ũ	Ð	~	~	~	~	~	θ	~	~	~	~	~	Ē) (H)H		4	
	J) D	() ()	() ()) ()) ()																															LANG CO	
K																				-	(K)	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	K	K	K	K) (K	(K) (K)		0	DE
																				-		\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim		~	~											
	N)																				M N								\sim	\sim	\sim) (M) (N) (N) (N)	(00	0
		0																																					$) \overset{\sim}{\bigcirc}$			DC
) (P) (Q										\sim	(P) (Q)	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim	\sim) (P)) (Q)		2 3	
B (R	B	R	R	R	R	$\widetilde{\mathbf{R}}$	R	R	$\widetilde{\mathbf{R}}$	R	B	R	B	B	B	B	B	B	B	$\widetilde{\mathbf{R}}$	R	R	Ř	Ř	B	R	R	R	$\widetilde{\mathbb{R}}$	R	$(\widetilde{\mathbf{R}})$	R	(\mathbf{B})	R	R	R	R) (R)		$\check{4}\check{4}$	Ð (4
		S T	(S) (T)																		S T								(S) (T)	\sim	(S) (T)	\sim	(S) (T)	\sim	(S) (T)) (S)) (T	'S))(T	' (S)) (T)(S))(T)		5 (5 6 (6	
Ŭ	Ū	Ŭ	Ŭ	Ŭ	Ű	Ū			Ú	Ū	U		U		U		U		U	Ū	U	U	U	Ū	Ū	Ū	U	Ū	Ū	Ū	U	Ū	Ū	Ū	Ū						$\overline{0}$	00
																					\mathbf{V}																		\mathbf{V}		8 9 9	
\mathbf{x}	$\widehat{\mathbf{X}}$	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	\mathbf{x}	\mathbf{x}	\mathbf{x}) (X) (X) (X	\mathbf{x}	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	\mathbf{x}	(\mathbf{X})	\mathbf{x}	\mathbf{x}	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	\mathbf{X}	(\mathbf{X})	(X)	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	\mathbf{X}	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	\mathbf{x}	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{X})	\mathbf{x}	(\mathbf{X})	(\mathbf{x})	$) \otimes$		<u> </u>	D C
\mathbf{Y}	Ŷ	Y	Y	Y	Y) (Y)(Y)(Y)(Y) (Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Ŷ	Y	Y	Y	Y	$(\underline{\mathbf{v}})$	Y		Y				
																					Θ									Ä		Ä	(2)	(Z) (-)) (-)				
\mathbf{O}																				1 -	<u> </u>	~	~	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	~	~	<u> </u>		$\widetilde{\bigcirc}$	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\underbrace{}$	$\underbrace{\circ}$	$\underbrace{\circ}$	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\widetilde{6}$	$\widetilde{0}$	<u>)</u>	$) \underbrace{}$			
5						IC	DEN	TIFI			INU	мві	ER								6	[DAT	E O	F BI	IRTI	н			7												
																					N	ИM	C	D		ΥY	YY										JOB					
																														_					(ORG	ANIZA	TION	4			
0	-																							0		0											CITY					
	~ 1								-		-		-		-		-		-		(1)	1 2		(1) (2)		(1) (2)		1		8												
3	3	3	3	3	3	3)3)3)(3)3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3			3	3	3		3	3	3		-					TE	STIN	IG LO	CATI	ON			
4 (4)																						4 5		4 5				4		_							CITY					
6	6)	6	6	6	6	6)6)6)6)6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6			6		6		6	6	6														
	7	$\overline{7}$	$\overline{7}$	9	$\overline{7}$	07	17)(7)(7	$\overline{7}$	(7)	$\overline{7}$	7	$\overline{(7)}$	$\overline{(7)}$	(7)	$\overline{(7)}$	(7)	(7)			7		7		$\overline{7}$	(7)	7		9												

_ __

	LIST	ENING SECTIO	N								REA	DING SI	ЕСТІ	ON				
	26 A B C	D 51 A B	C D 76	ABC	D		<u> </u>	~	C D 126	~ `		<u> </u>	~	~ `			~	~ ~
2 A B C D 2									C D 127									
3 (A) (B) (C) (D) 2 4 (A) (B) (C) (D) 2	28 (A) (B) (C)			A B C A B C			~	~ `	C D 128 C D 129	~ ~ `		<u> </u>	~	<u> </u>			<u> </u>	<u> </u>
	30 (A) (B) (C)			A B C			-	-	C) (D) 130	-				-			_	~ ~
6ABCD 3				ABC					C D 131									
7 A B C D 3	32 (A) (B) (C)	D 57 A B	C D 82	ABC	D	10	7 <mark>(</mark>	B	C D 132	A (BC	D 157	A	B (C D 18	32 <mark>(</mark>	B	C D
	33 (A) (B) (C)	× ××	ž ž	ABC	ž				C D 133									C D
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	34 (A) (B) (C) 35 (A) (B) (C)	× ××	žž	(A) (B) (C) (A) (B) (C)	ž				C) (D) 134 C) (D) 135									
	36 (A) (B) (C)			A B C					C) (D) 136									
$2 \stackrel{\frown}{A} \stackrel{\frown}{B} \stackrel{\frown}{C} \stackrel{\frown}{D} 3$	37 A B C	<b>D</b> 62 <b>A B</b>	C D 87	A B C	D	11	2 (A)	B	<mark>C D</mark> 137	(A)	BC	0 162	Ă	B	C D 18	37 <mark>(</mark>	B	© D
	38 A B C		C D 88				~	~ `	C D 138	~ ~ `		<u> </u>	~	<u> </u>			<u> </u>	<u> </u>
	39 (A) (B) (C) 40 (A) (B) (C)						-	<u> </u>	C D 139 C D 140	-		-	-				_	~ ~
15 (A) (B) (C) (D) 4 16 (A) (B) (C) (D) 4				A B C A B C					C D 140									
7 A B C D 4	~ ~ ~ ~	ă ăă	ăă	ABC	ž				C D 142									C D
	43 A B C		ž ž	A B C	ž				C D 143									© D
~~~~~	44 (A) (B) (C)	ă ăă			ž				C D 144									
	45 (A) (B) (C) 46 (A) (B) (C)			A B C A B C					C) (D) 145 C) (D) 146									
	47 A B C		C D 97				<u> </u>	~	C D 147	~ `		<u> </u>	~	~			~	~ ~
3 A B C D 4	48 A B C	D 73 A B	C D 98	A B C	D	12	3 (A)	B (C D 148	A (BC	0 173	Ā	B (C D 19	98 <mark>(</mark>	B	© D
4 A B C D 4							<u> </u>	~	<u>C</u> D 149	~	~ ~	<u> </u>	~	~ .	~ ~		~	~ ~
5(A) (B) (C) (D) 5		D 75 (A) (B)				12			C D 150									
GROUP CODE (if assigned)	1 2 3	4 5 6	7 8 9	10 11 12	13 14	15 10	6 17	18			атом 1		0	sтоі 2	vi		лято 3	
	A A A B B B	00AA 11BB		A A A B B B	A A B B			(A) (B)										
								Ĉ		\bigcirc	00		0	\bigcirc	0	0	0	0
	DDD	33DD	DDD	DDD	DO		D	D		$\check{1}$	1 (1)		Ť	$\mathbf{\hat{1}}$	D	$\overline{1}$		Ū.
2222	ĒĒ	(4)E		EEE	E			E			22		2		2	2	\sim	2
3333	F F G G	5 F 6 G	FFGG			F)F G)C		F			3 3 4 4		3 4		3) 4)	3		3) 4
		() () () () () () () () () () () () () (H F					55					5		
	КНЛЕЛ	81						$\overline{\mathbb{O}}$			6			6		6		
						\bigcirc)	\mathbf{J}			77		7	\bigcirc	7	7	$\overline{7}$	7
4 4 4 5 5 5 6 6 6 7 7 7		9						\bigcirc										
4 4 4 5 5 5 6 6 6											8 9 9			8 9	8	8	8	8

Score Reporting

TOEIC® Certificate of Achievement

The *TOEIC*[®] Certificate of Achievement is an acknowledgement of your English proficiency. The Certificate of Achievement is not an official score report. The TOEIC Certificate of Achievement is not available through some services. Contact your local EPN office for availability.

The TOEIC Certificate of Achievement features:

- Your name
- Your Listening score, Reading score, and Total test score (10–990)
- Your test date and location
- The administering organization
- A watermark on back
- A format that is suitable for framing



TOEIC® Listening and Reading Official Score Certificate

The *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading Official Score Certificate is an acknowledgement of your English proficiency. The TOEIC Listening and Reading Official Score Certificate is available for Public tests only. Official Score Certificates will have your photograph printed on it. Official Score Certificates are valid worldwide. Contact your local EPN office for more information.

Official Score Certificate features:

- Your name
- Your Listening score, Reading score, and Total test score (10–990)
- Your birth date
- Your identification number
- Your test date
- The date the scores are valid until
- A watermark on back
- Score descriptors
- Abilities measured

p	ant Taker		LISTEN	NG	TOTAL
	iere		Your s	(195)	SCORE
	234567890	1996/05/04	5	495	0
	acretication Remarks	Date of Bren	READIN	0	(990)
			Trace of	(495)	\cup
AND AND	POTRADE/11	2020/06/11 Valid Limit	5		
-	ientinstitution Nam	e: Test Cantor	14. 2009		
					·····
LIS [*]	FENING		contractor in classing 400 Test States	ADING	
The trouge of resultances, some interactions from over the file somethic data suppose, with the transmission in a subscription of the or paragraphism and when it is reactionary fiscal files are understood about a constraint patient of the file suppose or patients when a solar and the suppose of patients of the suppose of the file suppose or patients when the solar and the suppose of the subscription of the suppose file supposed to be subscription.	the second secon	vol orași în predită înstructorea x antractorea x apostructure are present. 1 în în financiare present. 1 în în financiare în în present. 2011	a nor refer the and prime ner popula- district in courses. They say and a di- ter were start therefore around a set for any entropy of the test and test and any or the information of a prime start of the test and test and any or the test and test and test and the control of the test and test and the test and test and test and the test and test	ni kat, dad biy sat onto o tryby, includ translege of non-flav rankengi of incody it its klow. Ney sat allo	eradam biren he yerere aans, stal de reserve tittati any
Build rouge of resultance, some other modes and never rich to another their papers. And this is any or the sound state, papers of the or properties and after to resolve by the Way for a statement data of the sound by the Way for a statement with the sound by the Mark for the space of the sound by the sound of the sound by the sound by the sound by the relations of the sound by the sound by the relations of the sound by the sound by the sound by the sound by the sound by the sound by the relations of the sound by the sound by the sound by the relations of the sound by	Intra property in Occurs or de families de sole per de families de sole de de de constante à la dé- charge, car de capital de la década de la década a la de de de sole de la década a la década de la década a la de de la década de la década de la década de la década de la década	To deep ingreed it should be a set of the set of t	of density over water for charactering. They near acade is the service characteristic actions are with fact for V costs predectational a locater destination of a cost of They part also results destination of a locateristic distribution of the service of academic distribution of the	en het, sur fey en onter e retyr, skinad maning of en for some general e skaben. Twy en state some generi till sache 1 PERCENT C	enalmi been en geographing pit de enter en enter enter enter enter en enter enter enter enter enter en
The strong of resultance and an approximate processing of the strong of	mitten engernen int folger o men order for internetien in tel mer der for internetien in tel mer der alternetien von der heiten ertengen, som der heiten auf erten, ditten der heiten auf mitten in zurgeber folgenetien erte alternetien von der nagelen ter men erten ditten internetien mitten in zurgeber der heiten mitten in zurgeber der heiten mitten aus die Richten der Heiten mitten aus die Richten der Heiten mitten einen ditten der heiten der mitten einen ditten der heiten der mitten einen ditten der heiten der heiten ditten der heiten der heiten der heiten der heiten der heiten der hei	"Orders repetition of the second	of density care total for charactery. Page set at de- tain service characteria atomic at set for the control of the set of care of the total of the control of the force of care of the control of the force of parents to a control of the force of parents	en het, sur fey en onter e retyr, skinad maning of en for some general e skaben. Twy en state some generi till sache 1 PERCENT C	enadana berean ke penergi kana, sut dan mataharan mataharan Telaway Dandake Tu
	PERSONNEL IN COMPANY	Volume product vice of the second	of details one model for conserving. They save a sub- tor model with the second strength of the bit for the conservation of the second parameters are. They are state which definitions for a conservation of the bit second parameters are used to second and the bit second parameters are used to second parameters. The bit second parameters are used to second parameters are used as a second are used to second parameters are used as a second are used as a second parameters are used as a second are used as a second parameters are used as a second are used as a second parameters are used as a second are used as a second parameters are used as a second are used as a second parameters are used as a second are used as a second parameters are used as a second are used as a second parameters are used as a second parameters are used as a second parameters are used as a second are used as a second parameters are used as a second parameters are used as a second parameters are used as a second parameters are used as a as a second parameters are used as a second parameters are used as a second are used as a second parameters are used as a second parameters are used as a second parameters are usecond param	e ke, aartey ar one o rey, adaad maring di adabase. Sey ar olio serve purel til sacks 1 PERCENT C ADILITIES	onneon or or or or or other of the other o
	PERGENT COM Solution	Videgi pendit *** No ***	dama ter seren yang bergin yang bergin ter seren yang bergin yang bergin ter seren yang bergin yang bergin ter seren yang bergin yang bergi	PERCENT C	onnecot or mentional menti
	PERCENT CON ACCURATE A SUCCESSION OF A SUCCESS	Control of the second of	datasi. In summy "The set of the set of t	PERCENT C	CORRECT OF WEASURED IN A State of the second of the second of the WEASURED IN A State of 100 100 100 100 100 100
	The second secon	100 and product 200 200 and product 200		PERCENT C ADRUTTES C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	onneuro Janes Anno meninesia energia esta
	PERIODICAL CONTRACTOR	100 ang heat 200 100 ang heat 100	channelle and services of the service of the ser	PERCENT C ADDITION OF A DISCOMPLICATION OF A DISCOM	CORRECT OF WEASURED CORRECT OF WEASURED 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 10
	PERSONAL ADDRESS OF AD	Other of the set of t		PERSONAL AND A SUBJECT OF A SUB	And the protect of the second

TOEIC® Listening and Reading Official Score Report

The TOEIC[®] Listening and Reading Score Report is an acknowledgment of your English proficiency. The TOEIC Score Report is available for Institutional tests. The scores from an institutional test are only valid within the issuing institution. Contact your local EPN office for more information.

Score Report features:

- Your name
- Your Listening score, Reading score, and Total test score (10–990)
- Your birth date
- Your identification number
- Your test date
- The date the scores are valid until
- A watermark on back
- Score descriptors
- · Abilities measured

	Test Taker		LEGYENE	7854	TOTAL
	Name		(110) Year St	***	SCORU
KWITH AVASE 2014	Bearing and the second	1 eminiants	$, \checkmark$	495	0
KNEW MACCESS	78456 tile-Wigator	1988/01/02 Date of Date	READIE		(100
KNDW BLOCESS	Burber	firm/million			100
KNOW ENGL/BR. KNOW SUCCESS.	2016/06/01	2016/06/01	(80)		_
KNOW ENGLIGH. KNOW SUCCESS.	Tesi Date (matemia)	Marie Linea Lannathermologi	6 Y	495	
	Glient/Institution Name:	ETS			
County's is all into the observed for	aing Sonon 10 nyain man mil 1711, 5 + 6713 n	iges and FERC interpreted	1		INTERNA 216
1	ISTENING		(81	ADING	
 Tory not repeating a submitted for even the information property of the secondary is used and when the secondary is used and when the to The conjecture details in order because privated the total or submit because privated the total secondary. 	elency description of the carbo theory and extended to propose and tenso control of web a travelogation and tensor workships prove surranges and tensor workships prove surranges and tensor workships	Appan mitti ushar kulu adrustan far mon monet at far	It shows not access second TSD parameters beyown branch mercuric assess or an over the second second second second second the care interesting of the last much second second second second second second second second the care interesting from care in the second	Litargador Mentorwy ro Honolog fail tragetol I conceptione About granitatic materi Websergranitatic materi	atus sebugata
 They are automatic if information in the second seco	Control Control of the control based page of the control based on the control based prove strengths and the control based prove strengths and the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the is in the control of the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the control of the control of the prove strength and the control of the prove strength and the control of the c	Angunati minini Janar Kang minini Janar Kang minini Janar Kang minini Janar Mitter Minini Coorplini Talah Coorplini Talah CTT OF MILEO	Ingriss Scale for some states in a f rear Techniquege of the test methods to tog the universitient water socializing an ingrise universitient for each scalesce. Any committee	PERCENT CO AMILITIES	dial scray to dial scray to di
 They not avalenable if conclude on They not consider an antisection of the atom the information is supported by They not content and donate is dependent secondary is using and when they in They not content and donate is second because an event of the text and anti- because are well of the text and anti- because are set of the text and anti- because are set of the text and anti- because are set of the text are callen.	And the second s	Appent with under two approximation approximatio	Neven Labor fine Localis Labor fine E Meridian Series and Series and Series and Nevential Series and Series and Series Angle Control Series and References Special of Net Series of References Special Series and Series Series of References Special of Net Series of Series Series Series Special of Net Series Special of	Ladodedin diportoriany to involutor data support i overcogramite to senergi annali di malani na suesci and 102 mettor 10 PERGENT COM	danstaryna dang linodd
 ¹ They give understated information of the second second		Anguni Constanting Services (Services (Service	Neven Labor fine Localis Labor fine E Meridian Series and Series and Series and Nevential Series and Series and Series Angle Control Series and References Special of Net Series of References Special Series and Series Series of References Special of Net Series of Series Series Series Special of Net Series Special of	Hardward of the order of the second of the s	Maria and an
England and a second seco		Alguna and a set of the set of th	Norma Salah Ra Long Lang ang	Hardward of the standing of th	dang Tangko dang Tangko ang bar yang dang tangko ang bar ang b
End and a second s		Angenin Control and Control an	b) en the black the product based of the product	Augustion references with a second of the reference of th	dial scray to dial scray to di
		Angenia Angenia service and the service at the the service at the service at the the service at the service at the the service at the the service at the the service at the service at the service at the service at the the service at the service at the service at the service at	In the set of the second secon	PERGENT COM ADDITION OF THE STATE	Internet of the second se
		Application Applicati	In such a single section of the sect	PERCENT CO ADDITION OF THE CONTROL OF THE PERCENT CONTROL OF THE PERCENT CONTROL OF THE PER	Ministration Among Theorem In SUMSED Build States And Among Among States And Among States And Among Am
		Angeli and the second s		PERCENT COM Additional and a second s	ants to of the second s

Score Holds and Cancellations

ETS and the local EPN office reserve the right to take any and all actions — including, but not limited to, barring you from taking any future ETS tests and/or withholding or canceling your scores — for failure to comply with test administration regulations or the test administrator's directions or where the validity of the scores is questionable. If your scores are canceled, they will not be reported, and your registration and test fees will not be refunded.

ETS and the local EPN office make every effort to report scores that accurately reflect the performance of every test taker. Accordingly, ETS standards and procedures for administering tests have two primary goals: to give all test takers equal opportunities to demonstrate their abilities, and to prevent any test taker from gaining an unfair advantage over others. To promote these objectives, ETS and the local EPN office reserve the right to withhold scores or cancel any test score when, in their judgment, a testing irregularity occurs, there is an apparent discrepancy in a test taker's identification, a test taker engages in misconduct, or the score is invalid for another reason. Reviews of scores by ETS are confidential. When, for any of the aforementioned reasons, ETS or the local EPN office cancels a test score that has already been reported, score recipients are notified that the score has been canceled, but the reason for cancellation is not disclosed except when authorized by the test taker or in certain group cases.

TOEIC® Listening and Reading Test Scores

Test Fairness and Score Use

The ETS *TOEIC*[®] program and its authorized local EPN office have taken steps to ensure, to the extent possible, that tests and test scores are fair for all test takers, regardless of gender, age, nationality, and test taker industry background.

Interpreting Scores

The *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test scores you will receive are determined by the number of questions you answer correctly. There is no penalty for wrong answers. The number of correct responses on each section, Listening and Reading, is converted to a number on a scale of 5 to 495. The statistical procedure used to convert scores to a common scale for each section seeks to ensure that TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores obtained on different administration dates mean the same thing in terms of the level of English proficiency indicated.

If you were to take several versions of the test within a short period of time, you would obtain a number of scores that center around an average value known as your "true" score. Two-thirds of the time, your Listening score would be within 25 points of your true score on the Listening section, and your Reading score would be within 25 points of your true score on the Reading section.

Release of Test Results

Local EPN offices are required to publish score reporting timelines so that test takers can determine, prior to registering for a public TOEIC Listening and Reading test, when they may expect to receive their score certificate. Score certificates may be delayed if any type of security review is required.

Test takers must be notified if their scores will be delayed or withheld. Depending on local policies, test takers may expect to receive their score certificate anywhere from 7 to 21 days after the test administration.

Official Score Certificates and Score Reports

The official score certificates and score reports will provide you with your score on each section of the test. A description of the English-language ability typical of test takers around your level can be found on our website, <u>https://www.ets.org/toeic/test-takers/listening-reading/resources/</u>

If you take the test through your employer or sponsoring organization this is an institutional test and your scores are provided to that organization. It is the responsibility of your employer or organization to provide you with a score report, which is only valid internally for that organization. Some organizations will choose to only use a score roster and not provide a score report. If you take the test independently during a public test administration, you will receive your official score certificate directly from the local EPN office. This official score certificate and your scores can be used worldwide.

In addition to the section scaled scores, the TOEIC Listening and Reading Official Score Certificates and score reports provide extra score information.

Scaled Scores

The official score certificates and score reports provide Listening, Reading, and Total scaled scores. The Total scaled score is derived from adding the two section scaled scores together.

Score Proficiency Descriptions

The official score certificates and score reports provide a description of the English-language abilities typical of test takers scoring at around a particular scaled score level. Because of limited space in the score report, only statements of strength are provided in the certificates and reports. There are three possible descriptions for the Listening section and four possible descriptions for the Reading section. A complete table of these descriptions is available on the ETS website, <u>https://www.ets.org/toeic/test-takers/listening-reading/</u><u>resources/</u>. The proficiency descriptors were developed based on a Scaled Anchoring Study conducted at ETS in the summer of 2005. A copy of the Scaled Anchoring Study can be provided to you by your local EPN office.

Abilities Measured

The test taker's official score certificate or score report also includes the percentage of questions the test taker answered correctly for specific abilities measured. The percentage can be compared only with the percentage score of test takers who have taken the same *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test form. Due to the relatively low number of questions in some abilities, caution should be used when comparing percentages across test takers who have taken even the same form. The abilities measured are calculated by the "percentage of items answered correctly." For example, if in one form there are 20 items to measure one type of ability, and a candidate answered 11 out of 20 items correctly, the percent correct score is 55%. The *TOEIC*[®] score is scaled based on a conversion table. This is to make sure your scores are comparable to the test takers who have taken a different form. Therefore, your TOEIC scores measure your English Proficiency level, and abilities measured only tell the percent of answers correct in that category.

Percentile Rank

A percentile rank score refers to the percentage of the TOEIC Secure Program population in the most recent three years who score below a particular scaled score. The percentile rank table is calculated based on a pool of 3-year test takers and is updated and made available on the ETS website, <u>https://www.ets.org/toeic/test-takers/listening-reading/resources/</u>, every May. For example, the percentile rank table of May 2017 is calculated based on test takers from January 2014 to December 2016. The percentile rank table of May 2018 is calculated based on test takers from January 2015 to December 2017.

Reliability

Reliability is defined as the proportion of observed score variance that is due to true score variance. It is an indicator of the extent to which test scores will be consistent across different conditions of administration and/or administration of alternate forms of a test. The type of reliability used in the TOEIC Listening and Reading test is reported as an internal consistency measure using the KR-20 reliability index. The KR-20 reliability index assesses the extent to which all items measure the same construct. The more homogeneous the test items, the more consistently the test takers will perform. The reliability of the TOEIC Listening and Reading section scores across all forms from our norming samples has been approximately 0.90 and up.

Standard Error of Measurement (SEM)

Errors of measurement occur when a test taker performs differently on one occasion or test form than on another for reasons that may or may not be related to the purpose of the test. A person may try harder, be more (or less) tired or anxious compared to some other occasion, have greater familiarity with the content of questions on one test form than on another test form, or simply guess more questions correctly on one occasion than on another.

These reasons for inconsistency are generally referred to as errors of measurement. The Standard Error of Measurement (SEM) is an estimate of average difference between true scores and obtained test scores, and is about 25 scaled score points for each of the *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading sections. A test taker's true score could be estimated by \pm 25 scaled score points around the test score obtained from one administration. For example, if you obtain a scaled score of 300 on the TOEIC Listening section, 68% of the time your true score will fluctuate between approximately 275 and 325.

Score Review Requests

If you feel that your scores are not an accurate reflection of your ability in English, you should contact your local EPN office within three months of the test date. The local EPN office will rescore your answer sheet and will give you a second official score certificate. If a discrepancy is found between the first official score certificate and the second one, the local EPN office will pay for the rescoring of your answer sheet. However, if a discrepancy is not found, you may be charged a small fee for rescoring costs.

Testing Irregularities

"Testing irregularities" refer to problems with the administration of a test. When testing irregularities occur, they may affect an individual or group of test takers. Such problems include, without limitation, administrative errors, such as improper timing, improper seating, defective materials, or defective equipment; improper access to test content; and other disruptions of test administrations such as natural disasters and other emergencies. When testing irregularities occur, ETS or your local EPN office may decline to score the test(s), or may cancel the scores. When in their judgement it is appropriate to do so, ETS or your local EPN office may give affected test takers the opportunity to take the test again as soon as possible without charge.

Repeat Test Takers

Test takers who take another version of the TOEIC test may obtain slightly different scores from those they received the first time. A question like this may arise, "How much of a difference must there be between two Listening scores or between two Reading scores before I can say that there is a real difference in my level of proficiency?" This question involves two tests given at two different times. The error of measurement associated with the score obtained from one administration is called the Standard Error of Measurement (SEM). The Standard Error of Difference (SE_{diff}) is the error of measurement associated with the difference is a difference is a two tests administrations. The SE_{diff} for each of the TOEIC Listening and Reading sections is about 35 scaled score points.

Another question that may arise, "If a person began training with a Listening score of 300 and, following training, received a score of 340 on a different test form, has that test taker really improved in Listening or is this increase just a statistical fluke?" Given random errors, one should expect the true difference to fall within a certain score range within a specified percent of the time. For instance, a band of \pm 1 SE_{diff} or \pm 35 points, around the obtained score (i.e., 265–335) corresponds to a 68 percent confidence interval. In this case, a 40-point increase is not very likely due to chance alone. This suggests that the test taker made a real improvement.

Validity

Primary evidence that the *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test measures English-language proficiency comes first of all from the careful way in which language-testing experts design and assemble the test so as to include a variety of important English- language tasks. An additional kind of evidence that has proven useful in establishing the meaning, or validity, of TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores has come from test takers themselves in the form of self-assessments of their own language skills. Self-assessments have been shown to be valid in a variety of contexts, especially in the assessment of language skills. TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores have shown moderately strong correlations (.40s and .50s) with self-reports of their own ability to accomplish certain English-language tasks, based on aggregated values across a range of Listening and Reading tasks, illustrative examples of which are listed on this page.

Reading	Listening
Reading office memoranda	Understanding directions on how to get to a nearby location
Reading English to translate text into one's own language	Taking a telephone message for a co-worker
Reading and understanding instructions	Understanding an extended debate on a complex topic

Test Score Data Retention

Scores are used to measure a test taker's English proficiency at the time that a test is administered. Because English-language skills may improve or decline over time, a score report will not be re-issued if two years have passed since taking the test. ETS does not require testing centers to retain test administration data beyond two years.

Policy and Guidelines for the Use of TOEIC® Listening and Reading Test Scores

Introduction

These guidelines are designed to provide information about the appropriate use of *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test scores for corporations or schools that use the scores in making hiring, evaluation, and career promotion decisions, as well as school-related decisions. They are also intended to protect test takers from unfair decisions that may result from inappropriate uses of scores. Adherence to the guidelines is important.

The *TOEIC*[®] program and its local EPN office have a particular obligation to inform users of the appropriate uses of TOEIC scores and to identify and try to rectify instances of misuse.

To this end, the following policies and guidelines are available to all TOEIC Listening and Reading test takers, institutions, and organizations that are recipients of TOEIC Listening and Reading scores.

Policies

In recognition of their obligation to ensure the appropriate use of TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores, the TOEIC program and its local EPN office developed policies designed to make official score certificates and score reports available only to approved recipients, to protect the confidentiality of test takers' scores, and to follow up on cases of possible misuse of scores. The policies are discussed below.

Confidentiality: TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores and the documents you complete that are retained by ETS (for example, your photograph) may be released to third parties such as government agencies or parties to a lawsuit if requested pursuant to a subpoena or required by applicable law.

We recognize test takers' rights to privacy with regard to information that is stored in data or research files held by ETS and local EPN office and our responsibility to protect test takers from unauthorized disclosure of the information. For more information please visit <u>www.ets.org/legal/privacy</u>.

Encouragement of appropriate use and investigation of reported misuse: All organizational users of TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores have an obligation to use the scores in accordance with the guidelines that follow (i.e., using multiple criteria, accepting only official TOEIC scores, etc.). Organizations have a responsibility to ensure that all individuals using TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores are aware of these guidelines and to monitor the use of the scores, correcting instances of misuse when they are identified. The *TOEIC*[®] program and local EPN office are available to assist institutions in resolving score-misuse issues.

Other Score-related Information

Score Verification

Institutions have the ability to verify score reports sent directly to them by test takers. At the written request of the institution or agency, ETS will verify the official scores recorded for you within the last 2 years. ETS or its authorized representative will also verify your score information at the request of any institution or agency that has a copy of your score report.

Guidelines

- Use Multiple Criteria: Regardless of the decision to be made, multiple sources of information should be used to ensure fairness and to balance the limitations of any single measure of knowledge, skills, or abilities. These sources may include graduate or undergraduate grade point average, years of experience in the target position, and recommendations from past supervisors and colleagues. When used in conjunction with other criteria, *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test scores can be a powerful tool in making employment- or school-related decisions.
- Accept Only Official TOEIC® Listening and Reading Official Score Certificates and Score Reports. The only official certificates and reports of TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores are those issued by ETS or by the local EPN office. If an organization administers a TOEIC Listening and Reading test internally, with ETS knowledge and approval, it can obtain and keep score reports of that test. However, those scores are intended for the use of the institution sponsoring the administration and not intended for use by other entities. Scores obtained from other sources should not be accepted. If there is a question about the authenticity of an official score certificate, the question should be referred to the local EPN office, who will then verify the accuracy of the scores and whether an official score certificate was issued.
- Maintain Confidentiality of TOEIC Listening and Reading Test Scores. All individuals who have access to TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores should be aware of the confidential nature of the scores and agree to maintain their confidentiality. Policies should be developed and implemented to ensure that confidentiality is maintained.

Appropriate Uses of *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading Test Scores

The suitability of a TOEIC Listening and Reading test for a particular use should be explicitly examined before using test scores for that purpose. The list of appropriate uses of TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores that follows is based on the policies and guidelines outlined on pages 32–33. The list is meant to be illustrative, not exhaustive, in nature. There may be other appropriate uses of TOEIC Listening and Reading test scores, but any uses other than those listed on the following page should be discussed in advance with *TOEIC*[®] program staff and its local EPN office to determine their appropriateness.

If a use other than those appropriate uses listed on the next page is contemplated, it will be important for the user to validate the use of scores for that purpose. The TOEIC program staff and its local EPN office will provide advice on the design of such validity studies.

Appropriate Uses

Used along with other sources of information, and provided all applicable guidelines are followed, *TOEIC*[®] Listening and Reading test scores are suitable for the uses described below.

- Hiring of applicants for an open position within a corporation or organization where workplace and everyday-life English is a required job skill
- Placement of applicants or candidates within a corporation or organization where workplace and everyday-life English is a required job skill
- Promotion of candidates within a corporation or organization where workplace and everyday-life English is a required job skill
- Measurement of workplace and everyday-life English proficiency levels of students in schools
- Measurement of individuals' progress in workplace and everyday life English proficiency levels over time

Misuse

Any use of test scores for purposes other than those listed should be discussed with ETS before being implemented.

Comments

Test takers can provide comments during the test administration by asking the test supervisor for the *Candidate Comment Form*.

If you have additional questions or comments regarding the TOEIC Listening and Reading test, please contact your local EPN office at <u>www.ets.org/epn_directory</u> or TOEIC program:

ETS Rosedale Road Princeton, NJ 08541 toeic@ets.org

For more than 40 years as an industry leader, the *TOEIC*[®] program has set the global standard for assessing English-language communication skills needed in the workplace and everyday life. The TOEIC assessments are the most widely used around the world with 14,000+ organizations across more than 160 countries trusting TOEIC scores to inform the decisions that matter.

At nonprofit ETS, our mission is to advance quality and equity in education by providing fair and valid assessments, research and related services. Our products and services measure knowledge and skills, promote learning and performance, and support education and professional development for all people worldwide.

> 149531-123902 • UNLWEB322 828955



www.ets.org